Questions from RFP Pre-Proposal Meeting
CDBG

1. How many copies of proposal need to be submitted?

a. One original and 4 copies

2. Should they be in the same binder?

a. You will submit 5 binders, 1 with original documents and 4 with copies.

3. What will be the start date for awarded contracts?

a. Contracts awarded are anticipated to start December 1st, 2011 for new agencies that do not currently have a contract with the City.  Those agencies that currently have a contract in place with the City, should they be awarded the new contract will start at end of the current contract. 

4. Will extensions be given for contracts that end before new contracts are awarded?

a. Yes, please contact the Relationship Manger for more information.

5. Is the RFP only for agencies that already have contracts with the City of Houston?

a. No, the RFP is open to all agencies wishing to participate.

6. Do agencies already receiving funding need to submit RFP?

a. Yes, this is a Request for Proposals for FY2012 funding.  

7. Is renewal guaranteed for agencies currently receiving funding?

a. No.  The RFP is for a 12-month period with a 1-year renewal option.  This option will be based on performance of the initial contract and on financials.  The City has the right to not renew contracts.  The Agency will have the right to not renew the contract.

8. Is the current CDBG grant ($999,500) increased/decreased from the previous year?

a. It is decreased from the pervious year.  The decrease in the amount of funding for the “contracting” agencies is a little over 4%.

9. Should questions be re-stated in proposal?

a. Yes. 

10. Is the 3 month cash flow for program only, or entire agency?

a. It is for program only, not the entire agency.

11. Is a general line of credit sufficient for 3 month cash flow?

a. Yes, but the Board of Directors must certify the 3-month cash flow.

12. Are incoming client fees sufficient for 3 month cash flow?

a. No.

13. Can 3 month cash flow for entire agency be sufficient?

a. Yes, but the Board of Directors must certify the 3-month cash flow.

14. Can other programs within the agency be included in leverage?

a. Yes.

15. Will documentation of leverage need to be submitted monthly along with other reports?

a. No, not at this time.

16. Can leverage be designated in-kind/volunteers?
a. Yes.

17. What is the dollar amount allowed for leverage of volunteers/professional services?

a. There is no published federal value for the time contributed by professional and nonprofessional volunteers in public service programs.  However, if your agency uses volunteer time as a part of the leverage requirement,   the rate used should be reasonable.
18. Can audits be included as a part of the budget proposed by agency?

19. Are there any types of programs that the City of Houston is more interested in funding?

a. Yes, programs that aligned with HCDD’s Action Plan

20. Can CDBG funding be used for FQHC clinic renovations to accommodate a new geriatric program?

a. No.  Public Service funding does not fund any type of construction projects.

21. Can CDBG funding be used for medical services for the geriatric population?

a. That would depend on the program and the design of the program.

HOPWA

1. What documentation is needed for certification from Board of Directors for the 3 month cash flow reserve?

a. A letter from the Board of Directors authorizing that a 3-month cash flow reserves exist, along with proof (i.e. bank statements, line of credit from the bank)

2. Will 4 month cash flow reserve be sufficient?

a. A 3-month cash flow reserve is what is required by this RFP. Anything more will be sufficient as well.

3. Who can sign off on the certification from the Board of Directors?

a. The Board Chair and/or a Board Member with signature authority as documented in the Bylaws.

4. Where in the proposal should the non-discrimination verification be placed?

a. Part Four: Exhibit 3 Proposal Content and Program Narrative, #5 Organization Capacity and Capability

5. Is a verification of deposit sufficient for 3 month cash flow?
a.  No, unless it is used as a set-aside for the 3-month cash flow reserve and the Board of Directors certify this.
6. Should all copies of proposal be in the same binder? 
a. No. Original documents in 1 binder and the 4 copies in 4 binders.

7. When will awards/notice of funding be given?

a. Awards/notice of funding are anticipated to go out late September.

8. If contract ends before November 30, 2011, will additional funding be provided to cover lapse in contract for agencies awarded new contract?

a. That is a possibility; please contact your Relationship Manager regarding the extension.

9. How will funding amounts compare to funding in the past?

a. For FY2011, HCDD funded agencies at a level of approximately $9 Million.  For FY2012, HCDD has almost $7 Million available for funding.

10. Are persons with HIV included in the category of persons with AIDS?

a. Yes

11. What is agency required to do for environmental clearance?

a. The agency is not required to do anything.  Environmental Clearance is done internally at HCDD.

12. Is a table of contents with page numbers needed?

a. It is recommended.

13. Is there a page limit for any section of the proposal?

a. No.

14. Does board of directors list need to be included in the proposal twice (exhibit and section ___)?

a. It should be included anywhere it is listed in the RFP.

15. Is exhibit 6 the same report currently used for agencies with existing contracts?

a. No.  

16. Is there a match requirement for the grant?

a. No, but leveraging is recommended

17. Are committed donations required?  Proof of fundraisers?

a. No.

18. Do occupancy permits need to be submitted?

a. Yes.

19. Should agencies under more than one contract submit separate proposals for each program?
a. Yes

20. Will contracts be extended if new awards are not made available by December 1st?

a. No.

21. Will all contracts go to the housing committee at the same time?

a. Yes, that is HCDD’s intention.  However, the priority for contracts will be based on when contracts are anticipated to start.

Questions received via email:

1. We are in the process of hiring our grant writer, and I need to give her a working definition of the following and examples of it:

· Tenant Based Rental Assistance                                                         

· Short Term Rent Mortgage Utility Assistance                       

· Supportive Services                                                                

· Sponsor Administration                                                          

· Operating Costs    

· Housing Information/Resource Identification              

a. Please refer back to the RFP. On page 5 and 6 is a list of the 6 areas with definitions.  Also, refer to the federal HUD regulations – 24 CFR 574   http://www.access.gpo.gov/cgi-bin/cfrassemble.cgi?title=200424
2. I was reading California HOPWA program and they are doing the following activities:  

 Activities to assist homebuyers to purchase existing dwelling units or dwelling units under construction, including closing costs and down payment assistance, interest buy downs, and similar activities that result in the transfer of title;

Why Houston HOPWA isn't doing the same.
a. I have not read up on the California HOPWA program and I am not familiar with the way California runs their program.

As for Houston, the Housing and Community Development Department has a Down Payment Assistance program.  This program is to assist low- to moderate-income persons with purchasing a home.  This program is funded out of other federal grants and not HOPWA.  To fund a program like this using HOPWA funds would be to duplicate a service. 

The above are all questions received as of 7/22/2011.
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